
13 January 2020

NOTICE OF MEETING

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Tuesday, 21 January 2020
beginning at

7:00 pm
at

Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Paul Bicknell (Chairman)
Councillor Tina Campbell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Alex Bourne Councillor Daniel Clarke
Councillor Jephthe Doguie Councillor Wayne Irish
Councillor Darshan Mann Councillor Rosemary Reynolds
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Senior Democratic Services Officer tel: 023 8068 
8041 Email: laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk  Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting.

Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Head of Performance and Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website -

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed. To register please contact the Democratic Services 
Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and  
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Apologies    

2. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 16) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2019.

3. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

4. Chairman's Report    

5. Public Participation    

6. Progress Update    (Pages 17 - 18)

7. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    (Verbal Report)

8. Planning Application - Land off Leigh Road, Eastleigh - A/19/86823    (Pages 19 - 
24) 

Consent to display 1no. freestanding marketing board sign at Land off Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh.  A/19/86823

9. Velmore Estate Parking Measures    (Pages 25 - 32)

10. Air Quality Update Report    (Pages 33 - 60)

11. Community Grants    (Pages 61 - 68)

12. Finance Management Report    (Pages 69 - 76)

13. Planning Appeals     

The Head of Legal Services to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-
 

1 Robin Square, Eastleigh, SO50 9JZ

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the retention 
of 8-bedroom HMO Use Class - Sui Generis (change of use from C4 HMO).

49 Westfield Road, Eastleigh, SO53 3GX

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the erection 
of a two-storey 3 bedroom detached property on land adjacent to 49 
Westfield Road.

 
(b) that the following appeals have been allowed:-
 

2



66 Kipling Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9DY

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant permission for a change of use 
of building from C4 HMO (up top 6 occupants) to 11 occupants (sui generis)

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday, 17 March 2020 at 7:00 pm

at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news-

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

1. FIELD_TITLE

2. FIELD_TITLE

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 11 November 2019  (7:00 pm – 10:11 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Bicknell (Chairman); Councillors Campbell, Bourne, Clarke, 
Doguie, Irish, Mann, Reynolds and Tyson-Payne

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

80. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

At the Chair’s invitation, the Committee, staff and attending public 
observed the Act of Remembrance during which Councillor Irish spoke 
The Exhortation and The Kohima Epitaph.  

The Chair noted that it was the Council’s intention to stage Eastleigh 
Borough Remembers in 2020, to coincide with the 75th anniversary of VE 
Day. 

His Chair’s report comprised mention of the attendance at the Eastleigh 
Borough Remembers service on Sunday, 10 November; and since its last 
meeting, the staging of the Mela and the Community Meal led by the Asian 
Welfare and Community Association (AWCA). Eastleigh’s Christmas 
Lights switch-on and fun day was scheduled for 16 November.

81. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Mr Simon Payne addressed the Committee on:

 clearance of leaves from public drainage collection points to avoid 
flooding; and 

 with the introduction of digital parking permits, how residents could 
be assured that vehicles were validly parked.  

The Chair thanked Mr Payne for these insightful contributions and 
indicated he would receive a reply either from a member of staff or from 
him.

82. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2019 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

5

Agenda Item 2



2

83. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Irish declared a pecuniary interest in the first recommendation 
of the Financial Management Report (allocation of developers’ contribution 
to St Nicolas’s Church). (Agenda Item 12).

The Chairman indicated that Agenda item 12 would be the final item of the 
meeting.

See minute 88 for additional declarations relating to the Lakeside Estate 
Traffic Regulation Order.

84. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

A senior planning officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that had 
to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in 
particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This 
was set against the broader policy framework.

85. PLANNING APPLICATION - BAY 6 SOUTH AND 7B SOUTH, 
EASTLEIGH RAIL WORKS, CAMPBELL ROAD, EASTLEIGH SO50 5AD

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Housing and 
Development (Agenda item 7) concerning the continued use of Bay 6 
South and Bay 7B South for scrap metal recycling facility (sui generis) 
from previous general industrial use (B2) at Eastleigh Railway Works, 
Campbell Road, Eastleigh.  (Ref:  /19/85190).  

The Committee were told that no further representations nor consultation 
responses had been received.  The Committee had considered site-
related applications at its meeting on 17 July 2019.  

RESOLVED – 

That planning permission be granted as set out in the report.

[NOTES: (A) a local resident of spoke in opposition to the application citing 
concerns around noise and light; (B) and the Applicant’s spoke in support 
of the application noting that this application was part of the wider 
regeneration of the site.]

86. PLANNING APPLICATION - EASTLEIGH RAIL WORKS, CAMPBELL 
ROAD, EASTLEIGH SO50 5AD

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Housing and 
Development (Agenda item 8) concerning an application for permission to 
allow open storage use within Class B8 and associated minor works at 
Eastleigh Railway Works, Campbell Road, Eastleigh.  (Ref: F/19/85287).  

6



3

The Committee were told that no further representations had been 
received.  The Committee had considered site-related applications at its 
meeting on 17 July 2019.  

No objections/comments had been submitted by Hampshire Highways (the 
Highway Authority), nor from Environmental Health staff.  There was no 
detrimental visual impact, nor an intention to increase the scale of the 
whole activity of the site which operated during normal day-time hours.

The Chairman noted the arrival of Cllr Clarke during this item at 7.35pm, 
therefore Clarke took no part in the Committee’s decision-making.

RESOLVED – 

That planning permission be granted subject to a revised Condition 8 
to exclude opening on Bank Holidays.

[NOTES: (A) a local resident spoke in opposition to the application citing 
concerns around flood-lighting, sounding of car alarms, vehicle speeds 
and the need for a footpath ahead of any other substantive works on the 
site; (B) the Applicant’s agent spoke in support of the application and 
reassured the meeting that there would be controls on lighting and he 
would pass on concerns around the sounding of car alarms.]

87. PLANNING APPLICATION - EASTLEIGH POLICE STATION, 18 - 24 
LEIGH ROAD, EASTLEIGH SO50 9DG

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Housing and 
Development (Agenda item 9) concerning a proposal for the 
redevelopment of the former Eastleigh Police Station site comprising 
demolition of two semi-detached former police houses to rear of the site 
and detached former police house to the centre of the site, demolition of 
outbuildings and partial demolition of Former Police Station building 
(removal of rear extensions) to provide an 80 bedroom care home (Use 
Class C2) and 4 close care apartments (Use Class C2) and a new block of 
9 residential apartments (Use Class C3), with widening of the footpath on 
Toynbee Road, and associated access works, parking, tree planting, 
landscaping and provision of site infrastructure. (Former Eastleigh Police 
Station, 18-24 Leigh Road, Eastleigh).

Officer’s recommendation to permit the development were subject to the 
conditions outlined in the report (1 – 30) and the net effect of these 
proposed conditions were described to the Committee with further 
amendment to the published proposed conditions as follows:

7



4

Condition 1: for the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning, the development hereby permitted shall be implemented in 
accordance with the following plans numbered: 1186PL-RDT-ZZ-XX-DR-
A-0100_PL6, 1186PL- RDT-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0105_PL6, 1186PL-RDTZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-0120_PL4, 1186PL- RDT-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0150_PL3, 1186PL-RDT-
ZZ-XX-DRA-0155_PL3, 1186PL- RDT-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0160_PL1, 1186PL-
RDT-ZZ-XX-DR-A-0165_PL1, 1186PL- RDT-01-ZZ-DR-A-0200_PL4, 
1186PL-RDT-01-ZZ-DR-A-0300_PL4, 1186PLRDT-01-ZZ-DR-A-
0400_PL4, 1186PL-RDT-01-ZZ-DR-A-0600_PL5, 1186PL- RDT-01-ZZDR-
A-0601_PL5, 1186PL-RDT-01-ZZ-DR-A-0610_PL5, 1186PL- RDT-01-ZZ-
DRA-0611_PL5, 1186PL-RDT-02-ZZ-DR-A-0200_PL4, 1186PL- RDT-02-
ZZ-DR-A-0600_PL5, 1186PL-RDT-02-ZZ-DR-A-0610_PL5, 3153-101- M 
Landscape Strategy, A112175-35-18-003 Rev D Visibility Splays, 
A112175- 35-18-004 Rev D Refuse Vehicle Swept Path Analysis, 
A112175-35-18-005 B Proposed Apartments Site Access Junction, 
A112175-35-18-006 Rev B Proposed Apartments Access Junction Swept 
Path Analysis & A112175-35-18-007 Proposed Apartments Access 
Junction Fire Appliance Swept Path Analysis.

Condition 26: to provide satisfactory access and in the interests of highway 
safety, the care home and residential apartments shall not be occupied 
until their associated accesses, including the footway and/or verge 
crossing has been constructed and lines of sight of 2.4 metres by 43.0 
metres and 2.0 metres by 40.0 metres respectively have been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans. The lines of sight splays shown on 
the approved plans shall be kept free of any obstruction exceeding 0.6 
metres in height above the adjacent carriageway and shall be 
subsequently maintained so thereafter. 

Condition 30 in the interests of highway safety and local amenity the main 
development hereby approved, including the close-care apartments, shall 
be used as a care / nursing home (other than the separate C3 residential 
block) and for no other purpose including any other purpose in Class C2 of 
the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning [Use Classes] Order 
1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification. 

Additional conditions as follows:

a) to limit the impact of the approved development upon protected 
reptiles which are protected species: “Works cannot begin until a 
suitable receptor site is found.  If there are no slow worms at this 
receptor site mitigation plans must demonstrate how it can be 
enhanced to receive the proposed population. Releasing reptiles 
into an unsuitable habitat could be an offence under the Animal 
Welfare Act 2006. The receptor site must be maintained in suitable 
conditions and the translocated population must be monitored 
annually for five years to ensure the success of the translocation.”

8



5

b) to limit the impact of the approved development upon protected 
reptiles which are a protected species: “No works, including 
demolition, shall commence on site until the reptile protection 
measures set out in the Ecological Impact Assessment by ECOSA 
dated October 2019 have been provided on site and details 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. These agreed measures shall then be retained until 
translocation to a previously agreed receptor site has been 
undertaken.”

The Committee were further updated that:

 Two further representations had been received from members of 
the public who had previously commented reiterating previous 
points made;

 Landscape Officer – A number of previously raised issues have 
been addressed;

 Environmental Health Officer – Recommended condition in relation 
to noise and air quality mitigation measures will address concerns 
raised;

 Natural England – Have requested further technical details in 
relation to the disposal of treated foul sewerage; and

 Hampshire County Council (HCC) Flood and Water Management 
Team – Comments on updated drainage proposals are awaited.

Councillor Campbell moved for a condition for inclusion in any permission 
that the provision for funding for public art be such that it enabled its 
amenity to be experienced from both outside and within the Scheme’s 
perimeter.  Councillor Irish seconded the motion and the Committee 
unanimously voted for such a condition.  

The Chairman moved for a condition for inclusion in any permission that 
the Applicant replace any single tree removed from the on-site or off-site 
elements of the Scheme which was seconded by Councillor Irish.  The 
Committee voted unanimously for such a condition. 

RESOLVED –

That Planning Permission be granted subject to:

i)         No adverse comments from Natural England and HCC Flood 
and Water Management Team to updated drainage information;

           Amended Conditions 1, 26 & 30 as set out above;
ii)        Amended Condition 16 corrected to make reference to 

Condition 17 and not 18;
iv)       Additional conditions A and B set out above;
v)        Additional condition (wording to be finalised*) requiring a 2 for 

1 replacement of trees removed from the application site; and
vi)       Securing planning obligations towards public art provision.

9



6

[NOTES: (A) During public participation, three members of the public 
spoke in opposition to the Application, citing the proposed heights in the 
Scheme’s buildings and their proximity (and therefore experiential impact) 
to existing private housing in comparison with the heights of recent 
building development at Charlotte Lodge and The Point.  Street scene 
views provided to the Committee were not felt to accurately illustrate the 
context of the proposed buildings with housing in Romsey Close. Air 
pollution, flooding and sewerage concerns were all identified by 
participants, together with the retention of the original Police Station in the 
Renaissance Quarter; (B) The Agent for the Developer spoke in support of 
his client’s Scheme, citing their ambition to realise a Scheme that would 
add to the quality of life of intended residents; the wider community; and 
bringing into use a heritage building.  On their behalf, the Agent confirmed 
the Applicant was agreeable to the proposed conditions to permit.]

*POST MEETING NOTE – the wording for Condition 20 (relating to trees) 
has been agreed as follows:

“No work beyond DPC level shall continue until a detailed landscaping 
scheme which follows that outlined in the submitted Landscape Strategy 
Plan, Ref: 3153 101 M, has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall cover all hard & soft landscaping, including 
trees and all external and internal boundary treatments, and shall provide 
details of timings for all landscaping and any future maintenance. The 
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and to 
the appropriate British Standard.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality, to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents and to adhere to the ELAC policy 
of 2 for 1 replacement trees.”

88. LAKESIDE ESTATE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER

At the conclusion of Agenda Item 9, the Chair adjourned the meeting to 
enable the departure of those members of the public who had been 
present for Agenda items 7-9 inclusive. (Adjourned at 9.27pm and 
resumed at 9.36 pm).

The Chair introduced Agenda item 10 (Lakeside Estate Traffic Regulation 
Order (TRO)).  At the outset, Councillors Bourne, Clarke and Mann 
declared pecuniary interests in this item and Councillors Clarke and Mann 
left the room during its consideration.

The Traffic Management Engineer took the Committee through the history 
of the making of the experimental Order, the resulting consultations and 
responses received.  The report included a summary of what was sought 
and had observed by individual residents and the response proposed.

10



7

The Chair summarised the position with a resident of Viscount Gardens 
that had been sent to the Committee: that in following the required 
process, further objections had been received to this part of the TRO’s 
coverage.  The Committee understood that if they deferred its decision, 
the entire Order would lapse, requiring the removal of restriction with effect 
from 15 December 2019 whilst a new TRO scheme was compiled and 
worked through its various stages of consultation and reconfiguration.

Overall, the Committee felt that parking issues around the Lakeside Estate 
had significantly reduced throughout the operation of the experimental 
TRO.

RESOLVED – 

That the Committee approved the making permanent of The Borough 
of Eastleigh (Lakeside, Eastleigh) Experimental Order 2018, as 
amended, with the addition of minor changes illustrated in Appendix 
2.

[NOTE: A resident of Rapide Close informed the Committee of the need to 
accommodate access to the adjacent allotments for allotment holders with 
tractors/trailer-hitched vehicles.  The Traffic Management Engineer agreed to 
look into this and report back as necessary.]

89. FEES AND CHARGES IN 2020/2021

The Committee received a report from the Local Area Manager on 
proposed fees and charges to come into effect from 1 January 2020 with 
those for Lakeside Country Park to take effect from 1 April 2020.  It was 
recommended that car parking charges remain unchanged in 2020/2021, 
subject to approval by Cabinet.

RESOLVED – 

That the Committee approved:

(1) the fees and charges set out in Appendices A-E to the report 
and to come into effect from 1 January 2020 with the exception 
of Lakeside Country Park, which will come into effect from 1 
April 2020; and

(2) that the charges for car parking would remain unchanged for 
2020/21, in line with the emerging corporate recommendation, 
subject to Cabinet approval.

90. PLANNING APPEALS

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported:-

(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:-

11



8

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
planning permission at 12 Sherborne Court, Eastleigh, SO50 4PB 
for the erection of a first floor side extension.  (Ref: H/19/85656). A 
decision delegated to Officers.

 
Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission at 66 Kipling Road, Eastleigh SO50 
9DY - for the change of use of building from Class C4 HMO (up to 
six occupants) to 11 occupants (sui generis).  (Ref: F/19/85959). A 
decision delegated to Officers and to follow the written 
representations appeal procedure.

(b)  that the following appeals had been dismissed:-

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission at 22 Nightingale Avenue, Eastleigh, 
SO50 9JA – the proposed development of 1 No. 3 bed detached 
dwelling with parking.  (Ref: F/19/84705) (Appeal Ref: 
APP/W1715/W/19/3226718).

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission at 10 Laburnum Grove, Eastleigh, 
SO50 9DJ – the proposed development was described as, “erection 
of a 1.5 storey extension replacing a rundown garage and garden 
shed at ground floor with a new annex/bedroom at first floor; 
providing accommodation for an ill family member.”  (Ref: 
H/19/84999) (Appeal Ref: APP/W1715/D/19/3230376).

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission at Builders Yard at the end of Mount 
View; to the rear of 44 Twyford Road, Eastleigh SO50 4HJ – the 
proposed development was a part-demolition of existing buildings 
and construction of five one-bedroom apartments in a three-storey 
building and three one-bedroom terraced houses in a two-storey 
building.  (Ref: F/18/83020) (Appeal Ref: 
APP/W1715/W/19/3220985).  A decision delegated to Officers.

 
Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission for No 9. Saddlers Close, Eastleigh, 
SO50 4SB – the proposed development being described as the 
erection of a pair of semi-detached dwellings, associated access, 
landscaping and garaging.  (Ref: F/18/83045) (Appeal Ref: 
APP/W1715/W/19/3224017).  A decision delegated to Officers.

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission for 12 Sherborne Court, Eastleigh, 
SO50 4PB – the proposed development being described as a 
second storey extension above double garage, kitchen and utility. 
Extension will contain two additional bedrooms with en-suite 

12



9

bathrooms.  (Ref: H/19/85656) (Appeal Ref: 
APP/W1715/D/19/3233443).  A decision delegated to Officers.

RESOLVED -

That the report be noted.

91. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT

Consideration was given to a report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 12) that comprised recommendations for allocation of funds from 
developers’ contributions to projects throughout the Local Area and the 
Local Area’s revenue reserve.  Progress with the various development 
projects around the Local Area had each reached a trigger point at which 
Developers’ funds under their respective S.106 Agreements could be 
utilised.  Recommendations (2) – (10) inclusive.  

Similarly, funds to be released from the revenue reserve and revenue 
budget to progress or improve facilities around the Local Area.  
Recommendations (11) – (21) inclusive. 

Councillor Irish had earlier given a declaration of a pecuniary interest in 
item (i) of the report’s recommendations, Councillor Irish left the room at 
10.08pm during the consideration of this item.

The Committee separately considered Recommendation (1), an allocation 
of developers’ contributions for the improvement of St Nicolas’ Church 
because of Cllr Irish’s declaration of interest.

RESOLVED –

That the Committee approved the following:

(1) £111,339 is allocated for improvements to St Nicholas Church 
from developers’ contributions;

(2) £202,376.48 is allocated to the Lakeside Country Park 
extension from developers’ contributions;

(3) £848,225 (plus any further interest accrued) is allocated to 
provide public access land in Home Wood from developers’ 
contributions;

(4) £150,000 is allocated to improve the Eastleigh Bus Station 
Toilets from developers’ contributions;

(5) £35,000 is allocated to the Freespace Car Park project from 
developers’ contributions;

13



10

(6) £13,500 is allocated to Fleming Park improvements with £7,500 
to the M3 underpass project and £6,000 for tree works on the 
Boundary with Dovedale from developers’ contributions;

(7) Up to £10,000 is allocated to the provide lighting on the Station 
to Lidl footpath from developers’ contributions;

(8) £9,800 is allocated to provide a new accessible roundabout at 
Leigh Road Recreation Ground and youth shelter 
improvements from developers’ contributions;

(9) £51,252.66 is allocated to the Travel Plan Co-ordinator post 
from developers’ contributions;

(10) £4,000 is allocated to the Allbrook Hill bus shelter, with £2,000 
from the Bus Shelter Reserve and £2,000 from developers’ 
contributions;

(11) £15,300 is allocated for regular events and services in the Local 
Area, as set out in paragraph 33 from the revenue reserve;

(12) £20,000 is allocated to the main summer event 2020 from the 
revenue reserve;

(13) £6,000 is allocated to the pay-on-foot ticket machine upgrade 
from the revenue reserve; 

(14) That a new Eastleigh Community Grant Fund is created, with 
an on-going £5,000 per annum from the revenue budget and 
£5,000 per annum from the revenue reserve for the next three 
years;

(15) £4,000 is allocated to the Eastleigh Garden Tree Project from 
the revenue reserve;

(16) £31,000 is allocated to the contingency fund from the revenue 
reserve;

(17) £1,000 is allocated to the Shakespeare Junior School outdoor 
classroom project from the revenue reserve;

(18) £2,500 is allocated for new rugby posts at the Bishopstoke 
Recreation Ground from the revenue reserve;

(19) £1,800 is allocated for ramps repairs at Freespace Skate Park 
from the revenue reserve;

(20) £18,000 is allocated  to the Energy Youth Centre boxing 
sessions from the revenue reserve; and

(21) £13,000 is allocated to the Eastleigh Youth Service annually on 
an on-going basis from the revenue budget.

14



11

M6561

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Tuesday 21 January 2020

Update Report

Date 
Received 
or Minute 
No/Ref:

Subject: Officer 
Contact:

Novembe
r minute 
81

Public Participation Question from Mr Payne 
of clearance of leaves 
from public drainage 
points to avoid flooding 

Guy Riddoch

January 
Update

The Borough Council sweeps the leaves from the roads and 
pavements on behalf of the County Council. They pay for two, possibly 
three sweeps each autumn, depending on conditions. We are able to 
respond to additional requests by members of the public for a local 
sweep if conditions get particularly bad. With regard to the drains, the 
County Council perform this function directly, so residents should 
report any blocked drains to HCC. The easiest way to do this is via 
their Report It pages at:
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/roadmaintenance/roadproblems/flo
oding

Novembe
r minute 
81

Public Participation Question from Mr Payne 
on how residents could 
be assured that vehicles 
were validly parked 
following the introduction 
of digital permits 

Sarah King

January 
Update

The new MiPermit system enables much more robust enforcement, 
because we have real time information of registered users. The new 
system allows our enforcement officers to spot-check at any time 
during their daily patrols all registered users, and it takes only 
seconds. If a vehicle is parked without a registered permit, then 
enforcement would continue as normal. The database will very soon 
build up a picture of where unregistered vehicles park most often, 
allowing us to target our enforcement patrols more effectively. If 
residents have concerns about unfamiliar cars parking they can report 
them in the same way and we will be able send a patrol to check as 
we currently do in response to cars without valid paper permits.
 
It is for the above reasons, combined with the considerably improved 
ease of use for customers, that virtual permits systems are becoming 
more and more common in other local authorities. Other authorities tell 
us that the level of customer satisfaction with the overall system has 
improved significantly following introduction. 

17

Agenda Item 6

https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/roadmaintenance/roadproblems/flooding
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/roadmaintenance/roadproblems/flooding


This page is intentionally left blank



ELAC – Eastleigh Local Area Committee Tuesday 21 January 2020.

Application Number: A/19/86823
Case Officer: Jagdeep Birk
Received Date: Monday 11 November 2019
Site Address: Land off Leigh Road, Eastleigh
Applicant: Jonathan Watts
Proposal: Consent to display 1no. freestanding marketing board sign.

Recommendation: Consent To The Advert Display

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: LOC 01, BLOC 01, EL 01, EL 02.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 This consent is for five years from the date of this decision and is subject to the 
five standard conditions set out in the Regulations.
a) No advertisement to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the 
site (this includes land or buildings where the advertisement is displayed), or 
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to give permission.
b) The siting or display of an advertisement is prohibited if it endangers anyone 
using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or 
military), or would obscure or hinder the ready interpretation of any traffic sign, 
railway sign or aid to navigation by water or air. It also prohibits the siting or 
display of an advertisement that would hinder the operation of any device used 
for the purpose of security or surveillance (such as closed circuit television 
cameras), or for measuring the speed of any vehicles (speed cameras or other 
speeding measuring devices. )
c) The advertisement and any land or building used for the purpose of its 
display to be maintained in a reasonably clean and tidy condition so that it does 
not impact the visual amenity of the site.
d) Any structure or hoarding used for the display of advertisements to be 
maintained in a safe condition that does not endanger the public.
e) Following the removal of advertisement the site shall be left in a condition 
that does not endanger the public and in a reasonably clean and tidy condition 
so that it does not impact the site's visual amenity.

Reason: To comply with the advertisement regulations.

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to the 
handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a 
positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner.

19

Agenda Item 8



Report:

This application has been referred to Committee because it is the Councils own 
application. 

    Description of Application
1. The proposal is for a freestanding marketing board advertising the office 

development at the former Council offices which will be 4.4 metres in height 3 
metres in width and 2 metres in depth (with the fixtures).

Character of the site
2. The site also lies along Leigh Road, the main western thoroughfare into 

Eastleigh Town Centre and is also part of the town’s western gateway being 
immediately next to Junction 13 of the M3 motorway. Leigh Road is a very 
busy and well used route for both pedestrian, cycle and vehicular traffic, 
making the site very prominent and important in terms of townscape and the 
entrance into the town.

3. The site is surrounded by a mix of uses including commercial, retail and 
offices, hotels, the Hampshire Fire and Rescue and Police Headquarters, as 
well as a number of public sports and leisure uses such as a bowling club and 
the Fleming Park Leisure Centre, together with the large area of parkland 
which is open to the public for general recreational use. In addition to these 
commercial and public uses there are also a number of residential 
developments within reasonably close proximity, the nearest of which is on 
the opposite side of Leigh Road at Cherry Tree Court, as well as off Passfield 
Avenue to the east.

Relevant Planning History
4. O/15/77116 - Outline: Construction of car dealership with ancillary car 

servicing and maintenance (Use Class Sui Generis), office space (Use Class 
B1) and two fast food takeaway/restaurants/drive-thru's (Use Class A3/A5) 
with associated car parking, landscaping, felling of trees, altered access from 
Leigh Road and diversion of Public Right of Way following demolition of 
existing magistrates court and office building (Access, Layout and Scale only 
to be considered).  Granted 2016.

5. F/16/78623 - Construction of a car dealership comprising; three showroom 
buildings, car display courtyard on site frontage, separate sales tent (sui-
generis use), workshop (B2 use), rear service yard, car parking, landscaping 
and access. Granted August 2016.

6. X/17/80119 - Variation to Condition 1 of planning permission F/16/78623 to 
substitute approved plans and allow for a revised site layout. Granted June 
2017.

7. F/18/83495 - Erection of four storey office block (with car parking at ground 
floor), roof plant room, 184 car parking spaces, landscaping and associated 
works.  Granted October 2018.

20



Representations Received
8. One received – Chalvington Road is a residential road and not suitable for 

advertising hording.

Consultation Responses
9. Hampshire County Council Highways – No objection.
10.Southampton Airport Safeguarding – No objection.

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site
11.Within Built-up Area Boundary

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies
12.Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policy 67.BE

13.Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, Policy DM1 (this 
Development Plans carries moderate weight in the determination of this 
application).

National Planning Policy Framework
14.The Revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that 

applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 
132 covers advertisements stating “the quality and character of places can 
suffer when advertisements are poorly sited and designed. A separate 
consent process within the planning system controls the display of 
advertisements, which should be operated in a way which is simple, efficient 
and effective. Advertisements should be subject to control only in the interests 
of amenity and public safety, taking account of cumulative impacts.”

National Planning Practice Guidance 
15.Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 

of planning applications. 

Comment on Consultation Responses
16.The sign is located at a significant distance from Chalvington Road.

Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background

17.Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:-
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must 
be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise."

21



15.The sign will be placed at the entrance into Villeneuve St. Georges Way from 
Leigh Road, advertising the new office development at the former civic offices 
site.   The design and scale of the sign is common amongst large scale 
development sites, and a number of prominent totem signs have been placed 
along Leigh Road relating to the car showrooms and M3 Trade Park.  The 
Local Planning Authority is not aware of any highway related incidents that 
have occurred from the placement of any signage, it is not considered that 
there would be undue harm to highway safety, or indeed harm the amenity of 
nearby residents

Conclusion
16.The proposal accords with National Planning Policy Framework, saved policy 

67.BE of the Local Plan Review (2001-2011), policy DM1 of the Submitted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036).

22



23



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 21 January 2020 

VELMORE ESTATE PARKING MEASURES

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Local Area Committee: 

(1) Approve parking restrictions in Wiltshire Road to ensure that the road is un-
obstructed and remains a viable bus route; and

(2) Approve parking restrictions at the junction of Belmont Road and Cox Row to 
prevent obstruction of the sight lines.

Summary
This report proposes parking restrictions to prevent obstructions to the existing bus route, 
improve visibility and reduce obstruction to other motorists passing through the estate and 
increase the overall number of parking spaces.
Statutory Powers
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.

Legal Agreements
Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council.

  Strategic Implications 

1. This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: Tackling           
Congestion and associated pollution on key commuter routes, and helping to 
create an Excellent Environment for All. Promotion of public transport helps to 
enable Health and Wellbeing.  The Velmore estate is one of the borough’s 
more deprived neighbourhoods, so measures to improve the environment also 
help in Tackling Deprivation where members of the public are more likely to 
have a greater level of dependency on public transport.

2. Introduction

Belmont Road is a distributor road through the Velmore estate linking Leigh 
Roadand Falkland Road (which leads on to Chestnut Avenue). This road 
along with Wiltshire Road and Cox Row forms part of a bus route. 

25

Agenda Item 9



Eastleigh Borough Council

The Bus company Xelabus highlighted this issue having been reprimanded by 
the Transport Commissioner for the persistent lateness on this route, which 
Xelabus drivers have claimed is due to specific residents parking on alternate 
side of the road, thereby blocking the road to larger vehicles. Xelabus have 
been in recent discussion with Eastleigh Borough Council about this Route 
and raised this location as a particular issue which these proposals will 
resolve. 

It is recognised that on-street parking is at a premium in this area the way the 
on-street parking is currently used with parking on alternate sides, the road 
accommodates approximately 12 vehicles in total along Wiltshire Road. By 
restricting the vehicles to one side we can increase the parking capacity for up 
to a total of 17 vehicles.

Due to the way in which Belmont Road is connected it currently provides an 
opportunity for drivers to ‘miss out’ a busy intersection and link to alternative 
main routes. Use of this un-classified residential distributor road as an 
alternative to the classified roads, causes some consternation to a number of 
residents with reports of congestion and the speed of traffic passing through 
the estate. These issues are to be considered in the later phases of the work 
on this estate. 

3. Consultation

A formal consultation was advertised in the 

 Hampshire Independent newspaper;

 Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website;

 Hampshire County Council (HCC) Public Notices Portal; and 

 public notices displayed throughout affected areas. 

4. Summary of Comments

This section summarises the five response, two letters of support one 
objection, one letter raising an addressable concern and one letter expressing 
general views responses received from residents and provides the specialist 
engineers’ response to the points raised.
Also included is a statement from the bus operator.
The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, in order to 
inform their decision on the implementation, or otherwise, of the Traffic 
Regulation Order. 

Comments from the Bus Operator

Xelabus has over a long period experienced difficulties in operating in Velmore 
Estate but certainly along Wiltshire Road. Parked cars on either side have given 
drivers major issues in safe access along this stretch of road as well as keeping 
services to time. There have been a number of occasions where drivers have 

26



Eastleigh Borough Council

had to call our office to obtain Police assistance and there can be a number of 
times when services are seriously delayed as well as major issues with 
residents who seem to take exception to having to move their vehicles. In order 
for any bus service to continue efficiently through this road we require Eastleigh 
Borough Council to implement parking restrictions as a matter of urgency.

 Comments from the residents

Comment Response
A letter of support has been 
received from the Hampshire County 
Council passenger transport section.

The letter of support for the 
measures are noted

A letter of support has been 
received for these measures from 
one resident whom also requests 
that the wider area is investigated 
for similar treatment

The question of taking measures 
further is in hand, the initial scheme 
report recommending a phased 
approach to these works. This was 
accepted therefore the additional 
measures the resident requested 
would be under later phases.

A letter of concern has been 
received from one resident about the 
effect the proposals would have on 
his disabled parking space and their 
ability to use the space.

The resident  has been met with and 
a suitable solution found.  

A letter of objection has been 
received from a resident stating that 
there is no problem for the buses 
and that restricting the parking to the 
opposite side of the road will cause 
difficulties for him when exiting his 
driveway when he has his trailer 
attached to his car.

Whilst parking on the opposite side 
of the road may be causing 
difficulties when towing a trailer, the 
turning movements of a standard 
domestic vehicle can be 
accommodated when egressing this 
property, with vehicles parked 
opposite. The combination of car and 
large trailer emerging from a property 
where the full width of the property is 
a vehicle access, would need to be 
undertaken with care. Given the 
shortage of on street parking and the 
difficulty reported by the bus drivers 
and service vehicles when 
negotiating vehicles parked on 
alternate sides of the road, allowing 
for residents to use the full road 
width to exit their property, is not a 
situation this scheme is able to 
accommodate. 
   

27



Eastleigh Borough Council

A letter was received from a resident 
complaining about a variety of traffic 
related issues but not raising any 
objection to the proposals.

These measures go some way to 
addressing the resident’s initial 
concerns and the later phases will 
address the additional point they 
raise 

Financial Implications

5. Developing and implementing a legal order to prevent obstructive parking will 
cost in the region of £3,500. These works will permit the local bus service to 
continue to run. The costs involved with these works is being provided by the 
Additional £100,000 identified for traffic regulation orders, relocation of the 
disabled bay is being looked into with the Disabled Facilities Grant team The 
relocation of the disabled bay is to be assessed on a needs basis. It should 
also be noted that relocation of the bay is fundamental to the provision of the 
bus route and will need to be completed either before implementation of the 
TRO.  

Risk Assessment

6. The public have been consulted on these proposals via the press adverts, 
notification on the Eastleigh Borough Council website and by on-street 
notices. The risk associated with not implementing the scheme is that the Bus 
Service provider regularly experiences delays at Wiltshire Road.  The bus 
service faced with the access problems delaying its buses and fines received 
as a consequence of these long delays are rendering the route economically 
un-viable with an increased likelihood of needing to withdraw the service. This 
in turn isolates those residents who do not have private transport it also acts 
against the Borough Council’s objective of encouraging an alternative to 
private car use. 

Equality and Diversity Implications

7. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
between different people in the following ways: These measures help to 
ensure the continuance of a local bus service and quality of life for some 
residents in an area of relative socio-economic deprivation. 

8. The Velmore estate contains a mix of private houses, social housing, flats and 
bungalows for elderly / those with mobility issues, the bus service passes 
through the residential streets to provide as far as possible a door to door 
service for residents, this caters for those who are either unable to drive or 
afford private vehicles. Due to the mixture of housing there are also a large 
number of households with multiple vehicle ownership   

9. Currently the residents park on both sides of Wiltshire Road albeit alternate 
side rather than double parked this does lead to some parking over the 
pavements (see photo below) thereby causing difficulties for pedestrians by 

28



Eastleigh Borough Council

regularising the parking there would be no need to park over the pavement 
which in turn improves the situation for pedestrians, wheelchair users and 
people with prams / pushchairs / small children. 

 

10. Climate Change and Environmental Implications

These measures help to lower Greenhouse Gas/CO2 by reducing the 
likelihood of congestion. By helping the bus service to be more punctual and 
able to be relied upon the service becomes a more viable alternative to private 
transport. This will help encourage residents and local businesses to make 
use of the bus service.

Conclusion

11. The problem being experienced in Wiltshire Road, Belmont Road and Cox 
Row is one of obstruction both of the junction of Cox Row and Belmont Road 
and by parked vehicles along Belmont Road. It is felt that the proposals will 
address the issues and permit the bus service to continue whilst retaining as 
much on street parking as possible avoiding unnecessary restrictions. The 
proposed measures rationalise the parking and make additional spaces 
available

DAVID PICKETT
SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST

Date: 17th December 2019 
Contact Officer: David Pickett 
Tel No:
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk

29



Eastleigh Borough Council

Appendices Attached: General Layout of the proposals

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Additional Papers: None.

30



Eastleigh Borough Council

Appendices:-
1) General Layout

31



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 21 January 2020 

AIR QUALITY UPDATE

Report of the Environment Lead Specialist 

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Eastleigh Local Area Committee  

(1) Note the update to the air quality measurements for Eastleigh in 2019; and

(2) Note the progress in the review and reissue of the Eastleigh Air Quality Action 
Plan

Summary

This report provides an update to the Eastleigh Local Area Committee (ELAC) on the state 
of air quality and progress in implementing the Eastleigh Air Quality Management Area 
Action Plan.  It covers the period to the beginning of December 2019 and includes recent 
data from monitoring stations in the Eastleigh Local Area as well as an update on the 
Eastleigh Air Quality Management Area Action Plan.

Statutory Powers

Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83(2)

EU Directive 2008/50/EC, transposed into The Air Quality Standards Regulations 2010 in 
the UK

Environment Bill 2019

33

Agenda Item 10



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. The impacts of poor air quality and the action needed to tackle it touch upon 
many of the Council’s corporate objectives.  This cross-cutting issue is led by 
the Cabinet member for Transport as part of the Council’s ‘Tackling 
congestion’ objective.  Council objectives around Health, Environment and 
Economy & Housing are all impacted by and impact on this issue, including 
‘Excellent environment for all’ and ‘Enabling healthier lifestyles’.

2. European and national statutory air quality duties derive from negative 
impacts on health and wellbeing, especially for the very young and old and 
people with existing health conditions.

Introduction

3. Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) must be declared where pollutant 
concentrations are found to be at risk of exceeding national objective levels, 
which are shown in Appendix 2.  Once declared, AQMAs must have an 
associated Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) which contains measures aiming to 
bring levels of air pollution under the objective values.

4. Two of the Borough’s four AQMAs are in the Eastleigh Local Area, Eastleigh 
AQMA No. 1 (A335) in the centre and Eastleigh AQMA No. 2 (M3) passing 
through the south west and bordering the western boundary.  These were 
declared due a risk of exceedance of the annual objective for nitrogen dioxide 
(NO2).  A map outlining the location of these can be found in Appendix 1.  
These are currently covered by an adopted AQAP which is due for review and 
reissue in 2020.

Air Quality Monitoring Results

5. Monitoring across the Eastleigh Local Area is carried out by two principle 
methods:  

- 18 diffusion tubes measure NO2 and provide monthly values. 

- 3 continuous monitoring stations measure NO2 and PM10 with higher 
accuracy and time resolution, allowing them to show changes as they 
happen during the course of the day.

6. Air quality monitoring data is presented in Appendix 2 and covers up to the 
beginning of December 2019.  Where gaps in the data are seen a short 
explanation of the reason has been provided.  This is often due to analyser 
faults and it should be noted that an upgrade for these analysers is planned 
over the period 2020 – 2021.  Results are verified through independent data 
ratification by Kings College London which has not yet been completed for 
2019, therefore this is only an indication of the year to date.  Finalised results 
for 2019 which can be put into context with long term trends will be provided in 
the June 2020 report.

34



Eastleigh Borough Council

Air Quality Action Plan

7. As the Eastleigh AQAP 2015 – 2020 is due for a review, prioritisation has 
been given to the development of a new Borough-wide action plan which 
included a public consultation and updating the AQAP ready for reissue.  
Work against the existing plan has also continued, and progress since the last 
report in June 2019 includes:

(a) Funding secured to upgrade all continuous analysers in ELAC and 
work planned to start in 2020

(b) Continued work on the DEFRA funded low cost sensor project, 
providing data on air quality and traffic movements at key areas in 
Eastleigh

(c) Clean Air Day event held in Eastleigh town centre to promote 
understanding of air quality issues and help people understand what 
they can do to reduce their impact and limit their exposure

(d) Successful launch of the ‘Mum & Baby’ cycle group

(e) Progress on the Hut Hill cycle path which is planned for completion this 
financial year

8. The Eastleigh AQAP was reviewed in 2019 and the development process 
involved a six week public consultation on a draft AQAP, see Appendix 3 for 
the consultation document.   The AQAP is scheduled for approval and 
adoption by Cabinet in February 2020.  Following this it will be submitted to 
DEFRA and made publically available on the Council website.

9. The Eastleigh AQAP is now part of a Borough-wide AQAP which is the result 
of consolidating all the Council’s Action Plans into a single document.  This 
approach was agreed following consultation with DEFRA guidelines, which 
confirmed that Councils with multiple AQMAs are encouraged to produce a 
single action plan to cover all.  This is recommended where all AQMAs share 
common pollution sources, as is the case in Eastleigh Borough where the 
main source of pollution for all AQMAs is traffic related.

10. The Borough-wide AQAP identifies both overarching actions and targeted 
actions for individual locations.  This takes into account that Borough-wide 
actions, such as the promotion of sustainable travel choices, will not only 
impact on the AQMAs but will have widespread benefits.  The actions build on 
previous local action plans, with both existing actions and the addition of new 
ideas, and are a mixture of funded projects, longer term aspirations where 
resources are not yet in place and schemes that require commitment from 
other public and private sector organisations.

11. Actions relevant to ELAC are both within its specific Local Area section and in 
the overarching categories grouped by Corporate Theme.  Progress reporting 
to ELAC will be against all locally relevant actions across the AQAP.

35



Eastleigh Borough Council

12. The AQAP is aimed at improving air quality in the time period 2020 – 2025 
after which it will undergo a full review.  However, it is intended to be a ‘living’ 
document and will be kept updated during the plan period.

Financial Implications

13. The AQAP consultation was carried out through existing budgets and 
available resource.

14. Any actions identified in the new AQAP that require additional funding for 
delivery will be taken to the relevant Local Area Committee (LAC) or Cabinet 
for approval.  Where possible Eastleigh Borough Council will work in 
partnership to deliver these and will take every opportunity to secure 
additional funding that is made available through grant funds or securing 
developers contributions from Section 106 Agreements.

Risk Assessment

15. The AQAP will ensure that the Council takes a managed approach to air 
quality by identifying the most effective actions and targeting priority locations.  
Progress against the AQAP will be reported annually and the actions reviewed 
and updated when necessary to ensure they remain relevant to Council 
priorities and activities.

Equality and Diversity Implications

16. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as it relates to 
addressing an issue that, although it has an impact on all residents, can 
disproportionately affect the most vulnerable in society such as children and 
people with health issues.  An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been 
carried out and submitted with the AQAP for approval.  In summary the EqIA 
shows that the Council has made efforts to engage those groups which are 
most affected by poor air quality and taken into account their concerns as part 
of the development of the plan.  The aim of the AQAP is to improve air quality 
across the Borough, this will benefit everyone but particularly those groups 
which air pollution has the biggest impact upon.  In this way, the AQAP is 
working to reduce inequality and adverse impacts on vulnerable groups.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

17. The AQAP supports work in the Climate and Environmental Emergency 
Strategy and Action Plan and many actions are relevant to both areas of work.

18. The AQAP aims to improve air quality across the Borough, particularly in local 
areas where air quality does not meet national objective levels.  Poor air 
quality has significant impact on the local environment and public health and 
in many cases air quality improvements are also positive for climate change.  
Conflicts can arise however, where action in one area has a detrimental effect 
on the other, therefore it’s important to consider how to achieve the maximum 
benefit.  In this way the AQAP will contribute towards the environmental 
targets set out in the Climate and Environmental Emergency Strategy.

36



Eastleigh Borough Council

Conclusion

19. This report provides an update on monitoring for the Eastleigh Area, however 
it should be noted that results have not yet been ratified therefore this is only 
an indication of the year to date.

20. Eastleigh Borough Council continues to work towards delivering 
improvements in air quality and the new AQAP will be instrumental in setting 
the Council’s programme of work for this.

ISABEL HESSEY
POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER

Date: 9 January 2020
Contact Officer: Isabel Hessey
Tel No: 023 8068 3356
e-mail: isabel.hessey@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1- Map of Eastleigh AQMAs and sampling points

2- 2019 Air quality data for ELAC
3- AQAP consultation document

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Background Papers: None

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – Map of Eastleigh AQMAs and sampling points

Eastleigh AQMA No.1 (A335)

Eastleigh AQMA No.2 (M3)

Hadleigh Gardens

Steele Close

Leigh Road / J13

Belmont Road

Leigh Road / Pluto Road

The Point

Southampton Road

Southampton Road 1

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 – 2019 Air Quality Data for ELAC

Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous analysers)

Site Pollutant Air Quality 
Objective Measured As Value/Exceedances* Objective 

Achieved*
40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 39 µg/m-3 Yes

Southampton 
Road NO2

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year)

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 26 µg/m-3 Yes

The Point NO2

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year)

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 25 µg/m-3 Yes

Steele Close NO2

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year)

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes

Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion tubes for selected locations)

Site Pollutant Air Quality 
Objective Measured As Value** Objective 

Achieved**
Southampton 

Road 1 43 µg/m-3 No

Leigh Road / 
Pluto Road 31 µg/m-3 Yes

Leigh Road / 
Junction 13 38 µg/m-3 Yes

Belmont 
Road 24 µg/m-3 Yes

Hadleigh 
Gardens

NO2 40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean

17 µg/m-3 Yes

PM10 (Continuous analyser)

Site Pollutant Air Quality 
Objective Measured As Value/Exceedances* Objective 

Achieved*
40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 22 µg/m-3 Yes

Southampton 
Road PM10

50 µg/m-3 (not to 
be exceeded 
more than 35 

times per year)

24 Hour 
Mean 4 Exceedances Yes

* Please note that values have been calculated for January – November 2019 only and are yet to be 
ratified, so should be used as an indication only.
** Please note that values have been calculated for January – November 2019 only and have had an 
estimated bias adjustment applied, so should be used as an indication only.
 

41



Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous Analysers)

Displayed as hourly averages
Red dashed line = Annual average objective level
Green dashed line = Hourly average objective level

0

50

100

150

200

250

01/01/2019 29/01/2019 26/02/2019 26/03/2019 23/04/2019 21/05/2019 18/06/2019 16/07/2019 13/08/2019 10/09/2019 08/10/2019 05/11/2019

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 (µ
gm

-3
)

Southampton Road

Data gaps of over 24 hours
7 – 11 June, 24 – 25 September, 29 September – 2 October, 7 – 8 November: Due to problem with electrics at site which is currently under 
investigation.

42



0

50

100

150

200

250

01/01/2019 29/01/2019 26/02/2019 26/03/2019 23/04/2019 21/05/2019 18/06/2019 16/07/2019 13/08/2019 10/09/2019 08/10/2019 05/11/2019

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 (µ
gm

-3
)

Steele Close

Data gaps of over 24 hours
13 – 14 June:  Problem with analyser identified at routine service, fixed by contractor and returned to site. 
29 July – 1 August: Analyser fault, engineer attended site to replace part.
12 – 18 September: Analyser component broken, replacement sent and fitted.

43



0

50

100

150

200

250

01/01/2019 29/01/2019 26/02/2019 26/03/2019 23/04/2019 21/05/2019 18/06/2019 16/07/2019 13/08/2019 10/09/2019 08/10/2019 05/11/2019

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 (µ
gm

-3
)

The Point

44



Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion Tubes)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Southampton Road 1 Leigh Road / Pluto Road Leigh Road / Junction 13 Belmont Road Hadleigh Gardens

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Jul-19

Aug-19

Sep-19

Oct-19

Nov-19

Selected diffusion tube sites across ELAC

45



PM10 (Continuous Analyser)

Displayed as 24 hour averages
Red dashed line = Annual average objective level
Green dashed line = 24 hour average objective level

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

01/01/2019 29/01/2019 26/02/2019 26/03/2019 23/04/2019 21/05/2019 18/06/2019 16/07/2019 13/08/2019 10/09/2019 08/10/2019 05/11/2019

PM
10

(µ
gm

-3
)

Southampton Road

Data gaps of over 24 hours:
11 February: Analyser fault which resolved itself.
7 – 11 June, 24 – 25 September, 29 September – 2 October, 7 – 8 November: Due to problem with electrics at site which is currently under 
investigation.

46



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 1

Ea
st

le
ig

h 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
C

ou
nc

il

E A S T L E I G H  H O U S E

Ea
st

le
ig

h 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
C

ou
nc

il

E A S T L E I G H  H O U S E

Air Quality  
Action Plan 
2020 - 2025

Draft

47



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-20252

This document is a summary of proposed actions for a new Air 
Quality Action Plan, which will aim to improve air quality in 
Eastleigh Borough from 2020 to 2025. Once you have read the 
document you will have the chance to comment and provide us with 
your thoughts. 

Current air quality in Eastleigh 
Borough

There are currently four AQMAs in Eastleigh 
Borough:

 � Eastleigh (includes Southampton Road, 
Romsey Road & Leigh Road)

 � M3 (from Junctions 12 to 14)

 � High Street Botley

 � Hamble Lane Area

The individual Air Quality Action Plans in place for 
each of these are due for review and the Council 
is taking the opportunity to align these into a single 
Borough-wide plan.

The Council measures pollution levels both in the 
AQMAs and across the wider Borough. Results of this 
monitoring can be found here.

These AQMAs have all been declared due to the 
levels of nitrogen dioxide exceeding the annual 
objective of 40µgm-3. Road transport is the most 
significant contributor to nitrogen dioxide levels in 
Eastleigh Borough. Long term trends in nitrogen 
dioxide have been studied, looking at levels over five 
years or more. Concentrations of nitrogen dioxide are 
decreasing at most sites, but many areas haven’t 

 Eastleigh & M3 

High Street Botley 

Hamble Lane Area 

Introduction

Eastleigh Borough Council is 
committed to reducing the exposure 
of people in the Borough to poor 
air quality in order to improve 
health and wellbeing. The Council 
recently declared a climate change 
and environment emergency and 
this plan is one of the initiatives that 
will support this work. As part of the 
Council’s responsibility to review and 
assess air quality across the Borough 
there is a long history of monitoring 
and delivering initiatives to tackle air 
quality issues. Air pollution is made up 
of many components, with nitrogen 
dioxide, ozone and particulate 
matter being the most important. 
Sources of these include transport, 
industrial processes and the heating of 
businesses and homes including solid 
fuel burning. Air pollution levels are 
compared to objective levels set by 
the government, and where pollutant 
concentrations exceed these levels an 
Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) 
must be declared and an Air Quality 
Action Plan produced, which details 
actions aimed at reducing pollutant 
levels to below the objective.

48

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/environmental-health/pollution/air-quality/air-quality-monitoring


Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 3

Current air quality in Eastleigh 
Borough

There are currently four AQMAs in Eastleigh 
Borough:

 � Eastleigh (includes Southampton Road, 
Romsey Road & Leigh Road)

 � M3 (from Junctions 12 to 14)

 � High Street Botley

 � Hamble Lane Area

The individual Air Quality Action Plans in place for 
each of these are due for review and the Council 
is taking the opportunity to align these into a single 
Borough-wide plan.

The Council measures pollution levels both in the 
AQMAs and across the wider Borough. Results of this 
monitoring can be found here.

These AQMAs have all been declared due to the 
levels of nitrogen dioxide exceeding the annual 
objective of 40µgm-3. Road transport is the most 
significant contributor to nitrogen dioxide levels in 
Eastleigh Borough. Long term trends in nitrogen 
dioxide have been studied, looking at levels over five 
years or more. Concentrations of nitrogen dioxide are 
decreasing at most sites, but many areas haven’t 

improved as much as expected and concentrations 
are still higher than the objective level in a number  
of places.

These locations are within the Eastleigh AQMA and 
Hamble Lane AQMA. In the case of Hamble Lane,  
a new area with levels higher than the objective has 
recently been confirmed, resulting in extension of this 
AQMA. Even though recent results from Botley High 
Street and the M3 corridor have not been higher than 
the objective, we continue to monitor pollution levels 
in these areas to support our work to further improve 
air quality. The actions in this plan will be essential for 
tackling the air pollution problem in Eastleigh Borough.

The health effects of air 
pollution

Air pollution is associated with a number of 
adverse health impacts and has been found to 
be the largest environmental risk to public health 
in the UK, highlighting the importance of taking 
action on this issue. Exposure to air pollution over 
short timescales can cause respiratory issues and 
long term exposure contributes to cardiovascular 
and respiratory diseases, ultimately reducing life 
expectancy. Poor air quality particularly affects 
those with existing respiratory issues, such as 
asthma, as well as disproportionately impacting on 
children and older people. Objective levels have 
been set to apply at locations where members of 
the public risk exposure, primarily frontages of 
residential properties, schools and hospitals.

 Eastleigh & M3 

High Street Botley 

Hamble Lane Area 

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Hamble Lane Southampton Road

An
nu

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 N

itr
og

en
 D

io
xi

de
 

(µ
gm

-3
) 

Monitoring Site 

Annual 
Objective 

Level

Example of site below 
annual objective level

Example of site exceeding 
annual objective level

Air quality monitoring station

49

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/environmental-health/pollution/air-quality/air-quality-monitoring


Air Quality Action Plan 2020-20254

The action plan

This action plan builds on previous local action 
plans, with both existing actions and the addition 
of new ideas. The following ‘Proposed Actions’ 
tables show a list of these. They are aimed at the 
time period 2020 to 2025, but the plan will be kept 
updated and progress will be reported on a regular 
basis throughout this period before undergoing a 
full review when it comes to an end. As road traffic 
is the major contributor to air pollution in Eastleigh 
Borough, actions are mainly based around reducing 
vehicle emissions and encouraging other methods of 
travel. Although the focus is on areas with the highest 
exposures, the whole Borough is included as we 
recognise that these actions will impact the wider area 
and to ensure we take account of the connectivity 
between the issues faced in each location. Therefore 
the proposed actions list contains both overarching 
actions (grouped by Council theme) and targeted 
actions for individual locations (grouped by area).

To identify the most appropriate actions 
consideration must be given to:

 � the likely impact on pollution levels

 � any associated effects

 � cost of implementation

 � implementation timescale

 � feasibility of implementation

Actions included below are expected to have a 
positive impact on air quality but include a mixture 
of funded projects, longer term aspirations where 
resources are not yet in place and schemes that 
require commitment from other public and private 
sector organisations.

To effectively tackle air pollution with this action plan, 
the Council, residents, businesses and other local 
groups and organisations all have a role to play.  
This is why it is important to have your input in 
creating a dynamic plan which everyone will work 
together to achieve.

www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-air-pollution/health-matters-air-pollution

50



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 5

Give us your views
For information on the consultation and to comment by filling out the questionnaire, please visit: 

www.eastleigh.gov.uk/airquality

The questionnaire will be open from 2 September 2019 – 11 October 2019

If you require a paper copy of the plan and questionnaire, please contact:

environmental.healthdirect@eastleigh.gov.uk

There will also be two open evenings during the consultation period where 
you will be able to ask questions and discuss the plan with us. These drop-in 
sessions will be:

SOURCES

34%*
Road 
transport 
Near roadsides 

Energy
generation 22%*

Other
transport 17%*

Domestic
& Industrial
combustion 19%*80%

*percentage of total NOx emissions (2016) source: NAEI 2018

O
rig

in
al

 d
es

ig
n 

by
 D

ef
ra

 D
ig

ita
l C

om
m

s

Government Clean Air Strategy 2019

Tuesday 17 September 
5pm – 8pm
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh SO50 9RD

Monday 23 September  
3pm – 6:30pm
Pilands Wood Centre, Chamberlayne 
Road, Bursledon SO31 8DT 

51

www.eastleigh.gov.uk/airquality
mailto:environmental.healthdirect@eastleigh.gov.uk


Air Quality Action Plan 2020-20256

Proposed actions

Environment

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Monitor pollutant concentrations across the 
Borough, including:

• Replacement of old analysers
• New analysers to measure extra 

pollutants
• New monitoring locations
• Trial of innovative low cost sensors

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

% data capture for each 
calendar year

Extended range of pollutants 
and number of locations 
monitored by 2022

Low cost sensor trial completed 
and findings reported to DEFRA 
by June 2020

Work in partnership with other Councils and 
key groups

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County Council

Neighbouring authorities

Local interest groups

Regular meetings held

Promote the use of electric vehicles and develop 
a network of publically available electric vehicle 
charging points across the Borough

Eastleigh Borough Council Number of charging points 
added by 2025

Transport

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Create a walking and cycling strategy to 
promote and encourage travel by these 
methods

Eastleigh Borough Council Completion of strategy by 
April 2020 

Continue to improve and extend the 
walking and cycling network in line with 
the new walking and cycling strategy

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County 
Council

Developers

Length of cycle path 
added

Pedestrian schemes 
completed

52



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 7

Transport

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Run campaigns aimed at reducing the 
number of single occupancy cars on the 
Borough’s roads

Eastleigh Borough Council Number of campaigns run

Number of people 
engaged

Work in partnership to improve public 
transport services by

- improving routes and services
- increasing the number of users
- reducing vehicle emissions
- securing sources of funding 

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County 
Council

Southampton City Council

Rail operators

Public transport providers 

Developers

Number of supported 
services

Number of public 
transport users

Proportion of buses 
classed EURO VI

Work with taxis and other licensed 
operators to reduce emissions

Eastleigh Borough Council

Southampton City Council

Taxi operators

Number of low emission 
taxi grants awarded

Promote and expand car clubs Eastleigh Borough Council Number of new car club 
locations

Increase availability of bicycle hire 
schemes

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

Availability of hire schemes

Consult on encouraging ownership of 
low emission vehicles through differential 
parking charges

Eastleigh Borough Council Consultation outcome by 
2022

Use low cost sensor study to understand 
relationships between traffic movements 
and air quality to influence future road 
management and design

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County 
Council

Availability of air quality 
and traffic data to be used 
as evidence 

Engage with Hampshire County Council 
and Highways England on their highways 
improvement schemes to ensure they 
support our work on air quality

Hampshire County 
Council

Highways England

Completion of highways 
improvement schemes

53



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-20258

Health & Social Policy

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Increase public awareness of air quality 
issues and the benefits of an active lifestyle 
through:

• the Council’s website
• the ‘airAlert’ service
• events
• campaigns

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County Council

Local interest groups

Number of campaigns run

Number of people engaged

Number of people subscribed 
to airAlert

Carry out school projects and campaigns 
including:

• travel planning
• temporary road closures
• monitoring projects
• clean air campaigns 

Eastleigh Borough Council

Southampton City Council

Hampshire County Council

Public transport operators

Number of schools  
taking part

Number of School Streets 
road closure events held

Provide information and advice on the use of 
solid fuel burners

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

Number of campaigns run

Number of people engaged

Housing

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Ensure that development adheres to policies 
set out in the emerging Local Plan relating 
to air pollution impacts and supports high 
quality sustainable development, particularly 
for developments in or close to AQMAs. 
These could include: 

• electric vehicle charging points
• parking policies
• low NOx boilers
• landscaping
• walking and cycling facilities

Eastleigh Borough Council

Developers

Managed impact on air 
pollution

Sustainability of new 
developments

54



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 9

Economy & Regeneration

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Eastleigh Borough Council will work to

• reduce business mileage
• reduce vehicle fleet emissions
• promote sustainable travel choices to 

staff, Councillors and visitors through 
travel planning

Eastleigh Borough Council Number of business miles 
saved

Amount of diesel and petrol 
purchased

Number of low emission 
vehicles in use

Work with local businesses to reduce their 
emissions through:

• fleets
• deliveries
• staff travel plans
• delivery service planning

Eastleigh Borough Council

Local businesses

External partners

Number of businesses 
involved in projects

Support and encourage businesses to adopt 
flexible working practices through improved 
connectivity

Eastleigh Borough Council

Local businesses

Number of businesses 
engaged

Work with Southampton Airport to minimise 
the impact of their operations on air quality

Eastleigh Borough Council

Southampton Airport

Number of meetings attended

Staff and visitor travel plans 
in place

55



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-202510

Local Area: Eastleigh

  Eastleigh AQMA 

Declared in 2005. Follows the A335 Southampton 
Road, Romsey Road & Leigh Road.

Amended in 2015 to extend a short way along 
Woodside Avenue, Twyford Road & Bishopstoke Road

  M3 AQMA

Declared in 2006. Covers an area extending either 
side of the M3 motorway, from junctions 12 to 14.

Local Area: Eastleigh

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Further study to learn more about the 
proportion of different vehicles by age and 
type in Eastleigh

Eastleigh Borough Council

Consultants

Completion of study by 2021

Carry out trial of innovative monitoring 
equipment

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

Data collected for key 
junctions in Eastleigh

Consider pedestrianisation of Market Street, 
initially as a temporary event

Eastleigh Borough Council Temporary closure event 
organised by June 2020

Impact of closure assessed  
by December 2020

Install electric vehicle charging points to include:

• Aldi, Chestnut Retail Park
• Romsey Road Car Park,  

Upper Market Street. 

Eastleigh Borough Council Two charge points installed  
by 2020

Number of charge points 
installed by 2025

Eastleigh AQMA No. 2 (M3) – Purple 

Declared in 2006.  Covers an area extending either side of the 
M3 motorway, from junctions 12 to 14.

Eastleigh AQMA No. 1 (A335) – Blue 

Declared in 2005.  Follows the A335 Southampton Road, Rom-
sey Road & Leigh Road.

Amended in 2015 to extend a short way along Woodside Ave-
nue, Twyford Road & Bishopstoke Road

Eastleigh & M3 AQMAs

20/08/2019

Environment

Date:

Department:

Scale: 1:36710

56



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 11

Local Area: Eastleigh

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Continue to seek approval and funding for 
the Chickenhall Lane Link Road

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County Council

Department for Transport

Link road approved

Local Area: Chandler’s Ford & Hiltingbury 

Local Area: Chandler’s Ford & Hiltingbury

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Provide an off road cycle/pedestrian route 
along Hut Hill, linking Chandler’s Ford with 
Chilworth

Hampshire County Council Completion of scheme by 
2021

Consider potential locations and funding 
sources to install electric vehicle charging 
points

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

Number of new charge points 
installed

Investigate expanding Co-Wheels electric 
vehicle locations to Chandler’s Ford

Eastleigh Borough Council New Co-Wheels location in 
Chandler’s Ford

Local Area: Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & Horton Heath

Local Area: Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & Horton Heath

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Improve traffic flow and increase facilities for 
active travel along Bishopstoke Road

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County Council

Completed traffic study by 
Spring 2020

Improvements implemented

Consider potential locations and funding 
sources to install electric vehicle charging 
points

Eastleigh Borough Counci

External partners

Number of new charge points 
installed

Use the development at Horton Heath as an 
opportunity to promote sustainable practices

Eastleigh Borough Council Number of sustainable 
initiatives implemented in 
development

57



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-202512

Local Area: Hedge End, West End & Botley

  High Street Botley AQMA

Declared in 2011. An area covering a 
number of properties along High Street 
from the Maypole roundabout to the 
Winchester Street junction.

Local Area: Hedge End, West End & Botley

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Investigate expanding Co-Wheels electric 
vehicle locations to Botley

Eastleigh Borough Council New Co-Wheels location in 
Botley

Consider potential locations and funding 
sources to install electric vehicle charging 
points

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

Number of new charge points 
installed

Delivery of Botley Bypass scheme Hampshire County Council Works commence by 2021

Completion of Bypass

Following completion of Botley Bypass, 
reduce HGVs using High Street 

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County Council

Number of HGVs on Botley 
High Street

High Street Botley AQMA

Department:

Date:

Environment

20/08/2019 Scale: 1:9177

58



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-2025 13

Local Area: Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice & Hound

  Hamble Lane Area AQMA

Declared in 2006 to cover an area covering a 
number of properties along Hamble Lane between the 
junctions with Jurd Way and Portsmouth Road.

Amended in 2011 to extend north to Windhover 
roundabout.

Amended in 2019 to include Windhover roundabout 
and the A27 to the river Hamble.

Local Area: Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice & Hound

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Further study to learn more about the 
proportion of different vehicles by age and 
type in the Hamble Lane Area AQMA

Eastleigh Borough Council

Consultants

Completion of study 

Liaise with neighbouring local authorities on 
their activities on the A27

Eastleigh Borough Council

Southampton City Council

Fareham Borough Council

Information sharing

Work to increase the number of people 
using Hamble, Netley and Bursledon railway 
stations

Eastleigh Borough Council

Community Rail Partnership

Number of people using 
stations

Investigate expanding Co-Wheels electric 
vehicle locations to Hamble

Eastleigh Borough Council New Co-Wheels location in 
Hamble

Hamble Lane Area AQMA

20/08/2019

Environment

Date:

Department:

Scale: 1:10000

59



Air Quality Action Plan 2020-202514

Local Area: Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice & Hound

Action Organisations Involved Key Performance Indicator

Highway improvements for Hamble Lane Hampshire County Council Completion of scheme

Highway improvements for M27 J8 and 
Windhover Roundabout

Highways England Works commence by March 
2020

Completion of scheme

Consider potential locations and funding 
sources to install electric vehicle charging 
points

Eastleigh Borough Council

External partners

Number of new charge points 
installed

Improve air circulation along Hamble Lane 
and the A27 through the management of 
trees

Eastleigh Borough Council

Hampshire County Council

Completion of scheme by 
2023

60



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 21 January 2020 

COMMUNITY GRANTS

Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the 
Eastleigh Community Grants Panel

Recommendations

It is recommended that grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 to this 
report.

Summary

The Grants Panel recommends that grants be allocated to local organisations operating in 
the Eastleigh, Allbrook and Velmore area for 2019/20.

Statutory Powers

S. 1 Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, including 
power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications 

1. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to 
localism (Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. 
The recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling 
Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an 
Excellent Environment, Improving Town and Local Centres, Increasing 
Provision and Ensuring a more diverse mix of Housing, and Enabling the 
Right Skills and Employment mix.

Introduction

2. Members will recall that this Committee has recently agreed devolved 
responsibility for provision of revenue grants to local organisations. This year 
12 different grant applications were received. The total requested was £9,937 
which is in line with the allocated budget of £10,000.

3. This Committees Panel comprising Councillors Campbell, Tyson-Payne and 
Bourne convened to review the applications.

61

Agenda Item 11



Eastleigh Borough Council

The Panel’s decisions

4. The Grants Panel gave careful consideration to all of the applications to 
ensure a broad distribution of funding was spread throughout the area.

5. The Panel also considered the objectives of the organisations, the numbers 
attending; whether they were from the Local area; the total cost of the project 
and whether funding was or could be sought from elsewhere. Additionally the 
applications were assessed against the following criteria: including business 
plans, details on how the grant application meets Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
priorities (Green Borough, Healthy Communities and Prosperous Place) and 
confirmation that the applications were not for day to day running costs.

6. It is therefore recommended that grants be approved as contained in 
Appendix 1 to this report.

Financial Implications

7. The total grant awarded in this report amount to £6,333 and can be contained 
within the approved budget £10,000.

Risk Assessment

8. The recommendations made by the Grants Panel do not hold significant risks. 
All grant applications are subject to the completion of a detailed application 
and supporting documents including submission of financial details. A follow 
up check will be made to ensure the funds have been spent in line with the 
approved grant within 12 months of the award.

Equality and Diversity Implications

The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and 
community sectors are treated fairly and equitably. The Council has had due 
regard to the aims of the Equality Act.  The recommendations in this report 
promote equality of opportunity, in particular for children and young people, 
children and young people with disabilities and disabled people (including 
mental health). Also to note, as part of the application process, applicants 
submitted an Equal Opportunities statement.

9. Climate Change and Environmental Implications

The community grants encourage and aim to change residents’ behaviour by 
supporting projects which incorporate green initiatives such as a reusable 
nappy project which will reduce waste created by disposable nappies and 
wipes. Supporting a Sensory Festival which will enable all participants to 
positively engage with the outdoor environment which in turn will encourage a 
greater respect and connection with the world, along with assisting a project to 
create a sensory garden which will help people to come together to relax and 
engage with nature.

62



Eastleigh Borough Council

Conclusion

10. The recommendations made in this report complement the Council’s 
corporate priorities as well as this Committee’s local priorities. Subject to the 
approval of this Committee, a grants presentation will take place before the 
Local Area Committee meeting on 17 March 2020 to recognise and celebrate 
the breadth of community work being undertaken in the local area.

SIOBHAN STRAND
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 02 January 2020
Contact Officer: Siobhan Strand 
Tel No: 02380 688428
e-mail: siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

12 grant applications were received and are held on file for further inspection. 
Information is available from Siobhan Strand, Assistant Local Area Manager.

63



This page is intentionally left blank



Organisation Project Name One off project (not previously funded by EBC), equipment or 

individual events? 

Meets EBC priorities (green borough, healthy communities, prosperous place)? How many 

ELAC residents 

will this 

benefit?

Amount 

Requested

Amount 

recommended

Eastleigh Street 

Pastors

Eastleigh Street 

Pastors

To contribute towards training fees and mobilising activities, new 

uniforms etc…

Our presence on the streets of Eastleigh Town Centre when the night-time economy is operating 

is a definite calming influence, confirmed by the police. Dozens of people having a night out to 

enjoy themselves love to encounter the Street Pastors and this engenders a feeling of well-being 

all round.  Some others are a bit low or struggling in some way and they value someone talking 

to them and showing an interest.  Sometimes people are helped in a practical way e.g. providing 

flip-flops to females who have abandoned the use of high heels, or walking someone home who 

is in need of company.  The Street Pastors collect and dispose of discarded glass bottles that 

cannot, therefore, be used as makeshift weapons.

Late into the night it is not unusual for fights to break out and Street Pastors have an enviable 

record of defusing these or, at least, containing them until the police attend.  On one occasion 

this year, in the early hours, a young woman was helped who, her friends suspected, had had 

her drink(s) spiked.  She was rolling around in agony on the pavement, vomiting and she later 

lost consciousness.  Two Street Pastors (one in her 70s) rendered assistance by summoning 

paramedics, caring for her, placing her in the recovery position, keeping her warm and standing 

by until the paramedics arrived.  Were it not for Street Pastors, someone else may have helped 

this woman but Street Pastors intentionally patrol until at least 3am on Saturday mornings 

specifically to help in situations like this, should the need arise.

Impossible to 

say, but around 

150 residents 

benefit per year

500 500

MHA: Live at 

Home - Eastleigh

Seated tap dance 

group

This specific grant is intended to be used for a seated tap dancing 

group which would be based in either St Andrews church (Blenheim 

road), Velmore Community Centre, The Pavilion in the park , the 

Progressive club ( Twyford road )  or St Francis Church ( Nightingale 

avenue ) , we have a qualified tap instructor who is a volunteer for 

our scheme (thus incurring  minimal costs )  who would work 

alongside our Community Program coordinator who holds a seated 

exercise qualification to run a fun and accessible class which would 

include half an hour of social interaction and friendship building 

either side of the hour long class. 

The grant would be used to fund the initial cost of buying 

equipment as such; 25 pairs of Tap attachments (attachments that 

hook on to peoples shoes)   £300.00, 25 pieces MDF flooring (so that 

we do not damage the floors of venues)£ 75.00, 1 Electric speaker                                                                                               

£ 30.00, 25 sets of therapeutic hand strengthening balls £ 70.00, 25 

sets of therabands £ 25.00, 3 Therapy balls                                                            

£ 50.00, £200 to be used to subsidize member transport and allow 

members in cases of hardship to attend  the group.                                                                                                                   

£ 200.00

Enabling healthier lifestyles / wellbeing – All of our groups aim to encourage people to remain 

an active part of their community and provide positive physical / mental and Emotional 

empowerment, we have had feedback from members who have seen significant improvements 

in all of these categories including a reduction in the need to interact with adult services ( due to 

improvements in mental health and a reduction in anxiety /depression)  and the NHS (reduction 

in falls , improvement in core strength).

Tackling deprivation - All of our groups aim to encourage people to remain an active part of their 

community and provide positive physical / mental and Emotional empowerment, we have had 

feedback from members who have seen significant improvements in all of these categories 

including a reduction in the need to interact with adult services (due to improvements in mental 

health and a reduction in anxiety /depression) and the NHS (reduction in falls, improvement in 

core strength) , this results in a significant reduction in Health deprivation amongst older people 

in the borough.

Tackling congestion – We operate a subsidised taxi system to allow people who cannot access 

public transport or travel on their own to attend our groups; this is supported by funding we 

have in place from other sources and means that no member pays more than £3 each way to 

attend any of our groups.

Between 12-18 

per session. We 

have around 

110 members

750 750

65



Eastleigh & 

District NCT 

Cloth Nappy 

Library

2 nappy kits: £475 per kit. Each kit contains 20 nappies (30 nappies 

in a newborn kit), 2 wetbags, a nappy bin, reusable nappy liners and 

disposable nappy liners. It will also contain literature on how to care 

for the nappies maximise their life span. Marketing: £50 printing 

costs for flyers and posters

The first intended outcome is to reduce the waste created by use of disposable nappies and 

wipes. An estimated three billion nappies are thrown away every year in the UK, accounting for 

2-3% of all household waste, according to recycling charity Wrap. Wrap says by the time they 

are potty trained, a baby could have used 4,000 to 6,000 disposable nappies. Therefore reducing 

the use of disposable nappies could reduce waste by an estimated 130 bin bags per household 

per year. The role of the cloth nappy library is to keep reusable nappies already produced in 

circulation, through the borrowing of pre-existing kits, but also encouraging the trading, buying 

and selling of reusable nappies when they are no longer needed. Finally, we will be encouraging 

parents to try towelling / terry cloth nappies, as these have been shown to have the lowest 

carbon footprint. The second intended outcome is to reduce cost for parents. It is difficult to 

estimate precise cost savings due to the variable use of nappies, however, The Women's 

Environmental Network (WEN) says that by using 24 nappies and laundering them in an energy-

efficient washing machine at 60C, parents can reduce global warming by 24 per cent. Using 

home-laundered shaped reusable nappies for two and a half years will cost around £350, 

including all laundering and energy costs (according to WEN calculations based on three popular 

brands). This is £500 cheaper than disposables. You can kit out a baby in real (towelling) 

nappies, including fastenings and coverings, for under £50. The cost of keeping a baby in terry 

nappies for two and a half years, including laundry and energy costs, is calculated by WEN as 

only £182.50. The early parents start using cloth nappies, the greater savings they will see. By 

getting the best fitting nappies early on is key, and the library is there to provide advice so 

parents don’t waste money on nappies that don’t suit their baby. Critically, we will be 

encouraging buying second hand and will create a forum that will help to facilitate 

buying/trading/swapping in the local area. We will also be offering loan term loans specifically 

for lower-income families that will reduce the cost of reusable nappies significantly.

New project, so 

not known at 

this stage.

1000 1000

14th Eastleigh 

Scout and Guide 

Band

14th Eastleigh 

Scout and Guide 

Band

Instrumental Workshops led by professional musicians from the 

Royal Marines Band Service and

other military organisations to help build the skills of all of our 

members (costing £500)

• Purchase of five music scores (costing £70 each)

• Purchase of new office equipment (guillotine and laminator) to 

help produce our music for march

cards (costing £150)

The 14th Eastleigh Scout and Guide Band prides itself on being fully inclusive to all members, 

taking those from less fortunate or deprived families in the borough, lending them an 

instrument and uniform, and teaching them the skills to perform to the highest standard in front 

of an audience. It has been proven many times that music is excellent for health and wellbeing, 

and this can be seen from the enjoyment that all of our members get out of playing together in 

the band, and from the thousands of people that see us play each year.

20 1000 500

Eastleigh Youth & 

Community Trust

Sensory Festival Marketing the event: £150  

 Sensory Trail packs x 100: £200

 Sensory Facility/hall time: £150 (subsidised by the charity reduced 

from £520)

 Cycle hire: £100 (subsidised by the charity reduced from £400)

 Sensory circuits consumable resources: £100 

 Event Prep and Planning: £150 (15 hours of staff time, 15 additional 

hours matched by the charity)

 Event Staffing: £360 (6 members of staff x 6 hrs each)

 Volunteer Expenses: £50 (refreshments)

Children and young people with disabilities, adults with disabilities, and their families and carers 

will benefit from increased wellbeing as a result of our Sensory Festival, and ongoing support to 

access Sensory facilities at Pavilion on the Park. The Sensory Festival will enable all participants 

(both those with disabilities and those without), to feel confidence in themselves, increase their 

positive self-esteem, feel and express a range of emotions, and feel engaged with the world 

around them. Our Sensory festival activities will provide opportunities for participants to 

positively engage with creative and fun activities in both indoor and outdoor sensory 

environments. They will be able to follow scents and sounds, go on a scavenger hunt, build a 

bike ‘carwash’ and create their own wheels. These activities help participants to develop 

creative ways to express their feelings which challenge them to discover connections in the 

world around them. These feelings of contentment, enjoyment, confidence and engagement 

with the world help increase wellbeing. 

188 1260 1260

66



Springboard 

Employment and 

Training Group

Springboard 

Employment and 

Training Group

£480 for telephone and internet access that allows us to:

• communicate with clients (book in clients, describe our service, 

provide 1-2-1 support, email new or updated CV’s, look at or work 

on online applications)

• allow clients to use specialised Career Software (Cascaid’s Kudos 

AD)

• maintain our charity website.

£444 for Cascaid Kudos AD Career Software (discounted by Cascaid 

from original £1,080).

We work particularly well with clients who need extra support to get back into work or training. 

In the last few years we have had a strong focus on clients with mental health problems. 

We offer three free hourly sessions where we are able to combine career coaching with life 

coaching and counselling to really support individuals. Additionally the client has access to 

careers software, through Springboard, which allows them to

identify their interests and skills and potential suitable careers which match those skills. 

Clients are surveyed 3 months after the Springboard support and on average we find that 70% 

of those that reply have either got new work, started their own business or a new training 

course, or kept a job that was in some way under threat.

30 924 924

SeeAbility SeeAbility The grant from the Eastleigh Borough Council will be spent in 

purchasing an outdoor water feature from Homebase for £999 to 

help create a sensory garden that our residents can enjoy. We are 

positive that the installation of this water feature will bring much life 

to this newly renovated garden and encourage the residents to 

spend more time outdoors. Residents will be able to enjoy the 

tranquil sound as the water tumbles and bustles its way down the 

feature. Furthermore, the built-in LED lights will assist people with 

low vision to access their outdoor space at night.

Research has found that gardens with water features, scented and 

fruit plants, play areas and accessible pathways are beneficial to 

people who have sensory processing issues including people with 

autism and

3 of 3

learning disabilities. Our garden will be a zone of peace where 

residents, volunteers and key workers will come together to relax 

and engage with nature.

As the people we support progress through their care plan journey, we also seek adjustment to 

their outdoor sessions and visits to nearby parks. We aspire to spend more time outdoors 

therefore developing green infrastructure at our service is necessary so we foster a culture that 

prioritises appreciation of the environment and active lives whilst meeting the Council’s 

priorities of promoting a green borough.

Our key staff will continue to provide support to our residents to engage in the community 

through their weekly activity sessions and visits to local parks. Research has proved how 

beneficial the outdoors and social interaction are for our physical and mental health which aids 

us in meeting the Council’s priority for a Healthy Community.

We encourage people with disabilities to challenge what they expect from life. Through this 

funding we are determined to strengthen the position of people with learning disabilities, 

autism and sight loss in Eastleigh.

While the 

residents living 

at our service 

are not from 

Eastleigh, 

Allbrook and 

Velmore, they 

are funded by 

the Hampshire 

local authority.

999 999

Fleming Park 

Lifesaving Club

Fleming Park 

Lifesaving Club

We have a small supply of equipment used for teaching skills in the 

water, acquired over a number of years but would like to invest in a 

‘Choking Rescue Trainer Vest’ to assist with our first aid sessions. 

We find that children learn much better with hands on experience 

and there are a number of skills that cannot be practiced on other 

members in a training situation. The use of a choking vest would 

give the opportunity to experience the actions required giving a 

kinaesthetic element to the training.

When the swimming pool is available, our members benefit from learning survival skills whilst 

also exercising. They work through a series of awards – Rookies for those aged 8-13 and Survive 

and Save for our older members. Other sessions teach first aid and associated skills, educating 

younger residents of the borough with invaluable skills.

15 130 150

67



ARK Eastleigh ARK Eastleigh Costs will include travel, entry if applicable and food costs.  These 

will depend on where we can organise trips and how much money 

we raise.  In previous years we have organised trips to Marwell Zoo, 

Portsmouth Historic Dockyards as well as family days out to Royal 

Victoria Country Park and Manor Farm Country Park.  Clients have 

also enjoyed trips to the Nuffield Theatre in Southampton and the 

Theatre Royal in Winchester.

Ark Eastleigh supports families and individuals in Eastleigh Borough, including Eastleigh Town 

and Velmore, who are facing significant challenges.  Challenges faced by our clients include 

domestic violence and abuse, physical and mental health issues and those at risk of having 

children taken into care.  We provide the practical help and support that an extended family 

would provide, for example, lifts to hospital appointments, help with DIY or gardening, 

supporting a client through attending meetings with them or taking someone out for a coffee. 

We also work closely with Eastleigh Basics Bank and help deliver food to clients and provide 

assistance with essential furniture and household items. These practical acts of kindness, 

befriending and informal advocacy can prevent difficult situations turning into a crisis.  

32 250 250

9937 6333

68



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 21 January 2020 

FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT

Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that  

(1) £125,231 is allocated to the Pirelli Park project from developer contributions;

(2) £68,049 is allocated to the Leah Garden Play Area from developer 
contributions;

(3) £65,912 is allocated to the Cheriton Road Play Area from developer 
contributions;

(4) £12,200 is allocated to the Grantham Green Play Area from reallocation of 
developer’s contributions from the wider Grantham Green improvement 
project;

(5) £5,000 is allocated to the Senior Sports and Health Officer post from the 
revenue reserve; 

(6) £3,750 is allocated to the Friday Night Football Project from the revenue 
reserve; and

(7) The Draft Local Area Action Plan shown in Appendix 1 is approved.

Summary

This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s capital 
budget and revenue budget.  The report also contains the draft Local Area Action Plan for 
2020/21. 

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

69

Agenda Item 12



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to 
localism (Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local 
needs. The recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of 
Tackling Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, 
Supporting an Excellent Environment, Improving Town and Local 
Centres, Increasing Provision and Ensuring a more diverse mix of 
Housing, and Enabling the Right Skills and Employment mix.

Pirelli Park Landscaping
2. A project has begun to provide a major new park that unifies the two 

phases of the redevelopment of the former Pirelli/Prysmian cable 
factory site. The total budget for the project is £371,636. The work is 
programmed to be completed in time for the end of 2020. £125,710 
from public open space funds and £120,690 from public art funds have 
already been allocated at previous meetings. A further £125,231 has 
recently been negotiated from the developer to pay for the hard and 
soft landscaping works. This payment has been received and needs to 
be allocated to the project from F/11/70044, Prysmian site, Eastleigh, 
received 16/9/2019.

Leah Gardens Play Area
3. The new play area at Leah Gardens on the Woodside housing estate 

was opened to the public in December 2019. £68,049 was secured for 
this project as part of the section 106 agreement. It is recommended 
that this sum is formally allocated from the developer contributions from 
DC0/13/73698, Woodside Estate, Eastleigh, received 11/01/2017.

Cheriton Road Play Area
4. The Cheriton Road Housing Estate also has a similar obligation for a 

play area. Local residents were consulted on a draft design in 
November 2019. A significant number of objections were received, due 
to the long thin nature of the open space and resulting proximity of play 
equipment to houses. A revised design is now being prepared with a 
view to further consultation and subsequent installation in 2020. 
£65,912 was secured for this project and it is now recommended that 
this is allocated from developer contributions from DCF/12/70310, 
Cheriton Road Eastleigh, received 28/06/2012.

5. In addition, a small fee to cover the cost of on-site supervision of the 
open space during construction and transfer to the Council was 
agreed. It is recommended that £3,491.53 is allocated for on-site 
supervision from the same developer contribution (OSF/12/70310), 
received 23/08/2017. 

70



Eastleigh Borough Council

Grantham Green Play Area
6. The runway under the zip wire at the Grantham Green has become 

very compacted and now fills with water for a several days after rain. A 
recent quote indicates the cost to import material to raise the height of 
the runway and provide new safer surfacing would cost in the region of 
£8,500. 

7. In addition, the in-ground trampoline is broken and is no longer 
serviceable. A new trampoline will cost in the region of £3,700.

8. It is recommended that £12,200 is allocated to this project from 
developers’ contributions, by reallocating this amount from the wider 
Grantham Green project budget. While the street lighting element is 
still to be resolved both items can be accommodated, after winning a 
£56,000 grant from Sport England for the Multi-Use Games Area.    

Sport and Health Officer 
9. The former Senior Sports and Health Officer left her post in December 

2019 and the Council intends to retain the post. The previous post 
holder had been granted a reduced 30 hours per week contract. It is 
now felt that to attract a suitable replacement a full-time contract is 
needed, ie 37 hours. While the post is funded corporately within 
Specialist Services, a request has been made for ELAC and HEWEB 
Local Areas to fund the additional hours for the first two years. 
Thereafter, it is anticipated that additional funding can be secured 
either from the corporate budget or external funding. The work 
programme for the additional hours will need to be agreed, but current 
suggestions include the following projects.

 Freespace Skate Park – provide the sports development role to the 
planned major rebuild of the skate park. This would include: 
researching current best practice for skating and BMX, engaging 
with users and working with local professional riders who have 
expressed a desire to establish a new skate club on site; and 
engaging with the British Cycling (the National Governing Body 
who administer Sport England grants for this sector). These areas 
of expertise would normally be beyond the scope of the capital 
project managers.

 The Rose Road Lakeside project – Rose Road are a Southampton 
based charity who are contracted by Hampshire County Council to 
provide year-round day-care services for 19-25 year-olds with 
profound learning and physical disabilities. They would like to hire 
the vacant Office at the Lakeside Centre to expand their area of 
coverage and explore whether additional classroom space can be 
built on site to provide access to outdoor education for a group that 
has poor access to this kind of facility. The Sports and Heath 
Officer would again be able to explore the health benefits and input 
to the feasibility study from Council perspective.  

71



Eastleigh Borough Council

 Disability needs assessment – it has been several years since the 
needs of the people with disabilities have been assessed within the 
town. This post would be able to carry out this piece of work, which 
could include engaging with local disability groups, transport 
providers, retailers, and local councils etc to review access and 
service provision issues and develop a plan to address them in and 
around the town. This important piece of research would then be 
available to inform future Local Area Action Plans. 

10.The cost for Eastleigh Local Area will be £2,500 per annum for two 
years, combined with a matching contribution from Hedge End West 
End and Botley. It is therefore recommended that £5,000 is allocated to 
fund this post from the revenue reserve.

Friday Night Football  
11. The Local Area Committee has supported the Friday Night Football 

Project for many years, as a positive way to engage with young people 
who are potentially excluded from mainstream football sessions and 
other club sports. Councillors have already set aside £750 for this 
project in the draft 2020 revenue reserve budget, however the cost has 
recently increased due to the ending of an £8,000 one-off grant from 
the Police and Crime Commissioner to provide the project across the 
Borough.  

12. For the Eastleigh Local Area, the Saints Foundation provide the 
coaching service at Places Leisure for 50 weeks of the year and have 
quoted £5,145 for the coming year. Taking account of £1,470 income 
from fees in 19/20 (from a £1 charge per session) and the already 
approved £750 budget, this will leave a shortfall of in the region of 
£2,925. Increasing the charge was considered, however councillors 
have indicated they would prefer to keep the fee as low as possible.

13. It is therefore recommended that an additional £3,000 is allocated from 
the revenue reserve, bringing the new total budget to £3,750.

Local Area Action Plan
14.The Local Area Councillors have reviewed its priorities for the coming 

year and prepared the Draft Local Area Action Plan given in Appendix 
1. It is recommended that the draft Plan is approved.

Equality and Diversity Implications

15.An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out as the report 
contains no direct proposed significant changes to new or existing 
services, policies or strategies. Separate consideration of the 
accessibility aspect of each project will be carried out as part of the 
project delivery. All of the proposed activities are designed to be as 
inclusive as possible, tackling discrimination, promoting equality of 
opportunity and promoting good relations between different community 
groups. Several are particularly targeted at groups with protected 

72



Eastleigh Borough Council

characteristics e.g. young people and people with disabilities, in 
particular the project outlined for the Sports and Health Officer.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
16.The creation on new skate and play areas creates additional CO2 

emissions as part of the manufacture, delivery and installation 
processes, however over their lifetime the provision of new more local 
facilities should reduce the need to travel by car, which may well offset 
the additional emissions. The planting of additional trees at Pirelli Park 
should provide a carbon sink and possibly help mitigate the urban heat 
island effect.  The use of drought tolerant varieties will help reduce 
water consumption. Increasing nectar sources through wildflower 
planting will help improve resilience of local urban biodiversity. 

GUY RIDDOCH
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 6 January 2020
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch
Tel No: 02380 683369
e-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

73



Eastleigh Borough Council

APPENDIX 1

Draft Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan 2020/21
Action Measure Milestones 

Maximise 
community benefit 
at North Stoneham 
Park 

 New primary school
 New community building and nursery 
 New open space and play areas
 New public art
 New walking trails & access to Home 

Wood

2020/21 

Improve public open 
spaces

 Pirelli Park - new landscaping, paths 
and play area

 Lawn Road - new landscaping and play 
area

 Lakeside Country Park - improved 
parking

2020/21 

Community Grants 
Fund 

Award an annual £10,000 fund to a range 
of community projects

Through 
2020/21

Youth Partnership, 
Council and Fund

 Develop the Area Youth Partnership 
 Agree an Area Youth Strategy 
 Establish an Area Youth Council 
 Create a Youth Grant Fund

Through 
2020/21

Deliver community 
clean-up and in-
bloom events

Deliver a community clean up and in-
bloom project in one estate per year

May/June 
2020/21

Improve verge and 
footway parking 
controls

Introduce two pilot estate-wide Verge and 
Footway Parking Control Areas in the 
Aviary, Ruskin Road areas.

Through 
2020/21

Tree planting across 
the area

Promote tree planting through a new 
subsidised Garden Tree Scheme

Through 
2020/21

Support for local 
residents’ 
associations and 
Friends Of groups.

Provide community development support 
for a number of groups each year

Through 
2020/21

Increase wildflowers 
and nectar sources

Increase the area of wildflowers on verges 
and public open space

Through 
2020/21

74



Eastleigh Borough Council
75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Progress Update
	8 Planning Application - Land off Leigh Road, Eastleigh - A/19/86823
	9 Velmore Estate Parking Measures
	10 Air Quality Update Report
	Air Quality Update Appendix 1
	Air Quality Update Appendix 2
	Air Quality Update Appendix 3

	11 Community Grants
	Community Grants Apppendix 1

	12 Finance Management Report

